Dubuque

THE CITY OF
DUBGOUE ¢ B

Masterpiece on the Mississippi  2017%2019

MINUTES
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION
REGULAR SESSION
5:30 p.m.
Thursday, April 18, 2024
City Council Chambers, Historic Federal Building

Commissioners Present: Acting Chairperson Thea Dement; Commissioners Bill
Doyle, Janice Esser, Tim Gau, Christina Monk, and Heidi Pettitt.

Commissioners Excused: Rick Stuter and Melissa Daykin Cassill
Commissioners Unexcused: None

Staff Members Present: Chris Happ Olson and Travis Schrobilgen

CALL TO ORDER: The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Dement at 5:32 p.m.

MINUTES: Motion by Gau, seconded by Pettitt, to approve the minutes of the March 21,
2024 meeting as submitted. Motion carried by the following vote: Aye — Dement, Doyle,
Esser, Monk, Pettitt, and Gau; Nay — none.

ACTION ITEMS:

DEMOLITION PERMIT

Applicant: Dan Reavis

Owner: Dan Reavis Properties LLC

Address: 2327 Central Avenue

Project: Demolish rear section

District: Broadway Place Conservation District

Staff Member Happ Olson presented the staff report noting the previously established
levels of significance for the property, the structural history of the property, reviewed a
number of images, and described the state of the structure currently. Happ Olson also
discussed the proposed partial demolition. She found that the 1979 Kriviskey survey
noted city/state/national significance and the 2005 Jacobsen survey noted the building
was National Register eligible. She noted that the front portion of the building was the
former beer hall and has historic significance. The portion to be demolished is located at
the rear of the structure and appeared to be in poor condition.

Staff also reminded the Commission of their role which is to review the information and
decide as to the following:




Minutes — Historic Preservation Commission
4-18-24 Page 2

1. Whether the building proposed for demolition has historic or architectural
significance to the community; if so

2. Whether denial of the proposed demolition permit would prevent the property owner
from earning a reasonable economic return on the property.

Staff concluded that the owner is requesting demolition only and has not submitted an
Economic Nonviability application for this portion of the structure.

Dan Revis, 16755 Budd Road, spoke in favor of the request. He said the rear portion of
the building is in terrible shape, that it does not look nice, that none of the windows are
original. He said it would cost a fortune to repair the rear portion but said the front is
salvageable. He said the retaining wall which is crumbling onto the neighboring property
will also need to be replaced.

Staff noted that the entire rear of the property was parged and it is difficult to determine
the condition of the structure underneath. She pointed to the corner of the building where
it appeared a damaged downspout had led to severe water damage.

The commissioners discussed the proposal noting that the property owner inherited some
of the damage by neglect. Esser noted that the entire rear of the building is in poor
condition and the amount of damage on the corner is significant. Doyle noted that the
beer hall at the front of the building is clearly historic, and the rear would likely have its
own importance but noted removal of the rear would not damage the integrity of the front
portion. Monk concurred with previous statements relating to history and function. Pettitt
concurred and stated the front portion of the building stands on its own as a historic
structure. The Commission discussed whether an approval could be granted to demolish
the rear given there is general agreement that the front portion is historic. Staff member
Happ Olson noted that the review is an interpretation and that they have the option to
view the two portions separately and then determine if the demolition would impact the
historic property.

Motion by Monk, seconded by Esser, to approve the application as submitted noting that
demolition of the rear portion of the structure would not detract from the historic front
portion of the structure. Motion carried by the following vote: Dement, Doyle, Esser, Gau,
Monk, and Pettitt; Nay — none.

DESIGN REVIEW

Applicant: Mike Stickley, Stickley Morton Architects

Owner: Bridgewater Advisors Real Estate

Address: 340 W. 5t Street

Project: Remove frame addition, add larger frame addition

District: Cathedral Historic District



Minutes — Historic Preservation Commission
4-18-24 Page 3

Staff Member Happ Olson presented the staff report noting that the applicant is requesting
a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for alterations including the removal of all frame
additions that date between 1909-1936 at the south and west sides of the structure. They
propose replacement with a similarly design structure utilizing largely the same materials
as is present, with a request for aluminum clad wood windows on the new section. She
detailed information regarding the previously established levels of significance for the
property, the structural history of the property, reviewed a number of images, and
described the proposed project. Happ Olson also discussed the proposal as it relates to
the Architectural Guidelines.

Mike Stickley, 206 Bluff Street, spoke in favor of the request. He described the project
noting that the impetus to move forward with the project is to add an ADA approved
bathroom, remove the exterior stairs and to expand the office area for additional staff. He
said they aimed to meet the state guidelines for the project but are requesting a few
alternative materials. He said they intend to rebuild with a similarly design structure
utilizing largely the same materials as is present, with a request for aluminum clad wood
windows on the new section.

Commissioners discussed the proposal. Commissioner Monk noted the removal of the
stairs is preferred and that the alternate materials are ok given this is replacing an
addition. Commissioner Doyle noted that it was a shame to see older material removed
but thought the project makes sense. Commissioner Gau concurred with all the previous
comments.

Motion by Gau, seconded by Esser, to approve the application as submitted. Motion

carried by the following vote: Aye — Dement, Doyle, Esser, Gau, Monk, and Pettitt; Nay
— none.

DESIGN REVIEW

Applicant: Lynn Lampe

Owner: Jeffrey Schmitt

Address: 508-510 Chestnut Street

Project: Replace existing non-historic window with smaller window
District: West 11t Street Historic District

Staff Member Happ Olson presented the staff report noting that the structure is a
contributing building within the West 11" Historic District. The applicant is requesting a
Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for alterations to a single window: replace the
window with the same style and width but with a different smaller height, requesting a
vinyl replacement for use in a humid room. The applicant has other windows in similar
locations that have been modified for this purpose. It is at the rear of the property and the
applicant will infill the void with in-kind brick, reusing the limestone sill and maintaining
the window width. The property is not in a highly visible area but is still visible from two
public rights of way.



Minutes — Historic Preservation Commission
4-18-24 Page 4

Lynn Lampe, 11898 Kennedy Road, spoke in favor of the request. He described the
proposal to install a smaller window in hopes of getting it up and away from a bath. The
replacement would also help with privacy for the resident and would be constructed with
old similar brick and reusing the stone sill.

The Commission discussed the proposal. Dement asked if staff was aware of whether
the previously approved windows were approved by the Commission? Staff Member
Happ Olson noted that she had not researched whether they were previously approved.
Commissioner Monk noted that the window would not be on a primary fagade. The
commission asked a couple of clarifying questions, ultimately, finding it appropriate.

Motion by Gau, seconded by Pettitt, to approve the application as submitted. Motion

carried by the following vote: Aye — Dement, Doyle, Esser, Gau, Monk, and Pettitt; Nay
— none.

DESIGN REVIEW

Applicant: Adam Riegler

Owner: Aaron Healy

Address: 190 Main Street

Project: Add two shed roofs to rear 2" and 3™ decks
District: Old Main Street Historic District

Staff Member Happ Olson presented the staff report noting that the structure is a
supporting structure within the Old Main Historic District. The roof structure(s) are at the
rear of the building along a secondary frontage. The applicant is requesting a Certificate
of Appropriateness (COA) to construct two shed roofs to rear 2nd and 3rd decks. This is
a functional change for residential use and is also intended to shed water for better
stormwater management for better protection of the structure. The project will be a new
feature and should be treated as such in evaluation. The rear of the property is not
historically accurate due to the removal of sections at the rear and the step backs on the
second and third floors.

Aaron Healey, 15192 Wood Wind Court, spoke in favor of the request. He noted that the
primary impetus was to help manage stormwater since they found water damage under
the existing decks.

The Commission discussed the proposal and asked clarifying questions regarding the
overall dimensions and proposed finishes. The applicant noted that he was open to any
suggestions regarding finishes. The Commission noted something dark would be
acceptable. Monk noted that the area is already altered so the request seemed
appropriate. The commission discussed the slope of the roof and noted that it may be
difficult to avoid water issues at 2/12 slope using shingles. They discussed alternatives.

Motion by Monk, seconded by Doyle, to approve the application as submitted and with
the ability for staff to sign off on an alternate roofing material, either dark matte metal or



Minutes — Historic Preservation Commission
4-18-24 Page 5

dark membrane. Motion carried by the following vote: Aye — Dement, Doyle, Esser, Gau,
Monk, and Pettitt; Nay — none.

DESIGN REVIEW

Applicant: Julie Lott

Owner: Julie and David Lott

Address: 653-655 Chestnut Street

Project: Removal of rear decks and doors, siding on secondary facades, new
handrail

District: West 11t Street Historic District

Staff Member Happ Olson presented the staff report noting that the structure is a
contributing building within the West 11™ Historic District, although a number of changes
have modified its integrity, including the deck additions at the rear and slate shingle siding.
She describe the request for a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for alterations
including, removal of rear porch and upper deck, residing rear wall with vinyl siding,
removal and siding over doors at second and third floor rear, reroofing upper roof at rear
with EPDM rubber roofing, creating a new eave/soffit cornice across the rear, residing
east facing side wall siding with vinyl, and replacement of mid-20t Century metal handrail
with new painted wood handrail.

Julie Lott, P.O. Box 1314, spoke in favor of the request. She described the proposed
changes and noted that the existing porch and wood siding is difficult to maintain as she
doesn’t have room on that side of the property to maneuver equipment. She said she had
about 20 contractors back out of the project due to lack of accessibility. She thought that
vinyl would allow more people to do the work and said the cost of slate siding is very high.
She said she wanted to get the house all one color and have all the different siding
materials at least the same color.

The Commission discussed the request. There was concern that the profile and reveal is
going to be hard to match, that the unoriginal deck can be removed, and that the same
color siding throughout would be preferred. The commission deliberated on alternative
materials ultimately finding the applicants proposal acceptable due to the limitations of
the property and the cost of slate siding.

Motion by Doyle, seconded by Gau, to approve the application as with the condition that
vinyl is only used in the location indicated, that they be finished in the same color as the
remainder of the house, and as close to the same profile as the adjacent siding. Motion
carried by the following vote: Aye — Dement, Doyle, Esser, Gau, Monk, and Pettitt; Nay
— none.

DEMOLITION PERMIT
Applicant: Alexis Steger, Housing & Community Development Director
Owner: City of Dubuque, Housing & Community Development




Minutes — Historic Preservation Commission

4-18-24 Page 6
Address: 945 Bluff Street

Project: Demolish of Structure

District: Jackson Park Historic District

Staff Member Happ Olson presented the staff report noting that while the loss of the
porch, which was not original, detracts from the integrity a small degree, the structure has
been evaluated a number of times and remains contributing to the Jackson Park local
and National Register historic districts, as well as the West 11™ Street Neighborhood
Conservation District. Happ Olson also reminded the Commission of their role stating that
it should be looked at as any other property, owned by any other individual or entity. She
also noted:

The Role of the Historic Preservation Commission is to review the information and decide
as to the following:

1. Whether the building proposed for demolition has historic or architectural
significance to the community; if so

2. Whether denial of the proposed demolition permit would prevent the property owner
from earning a reasonable economic return on the property.

Please note, the owner is requesting demolition, and has also submitted an Economic
Non-Viability application for review.

Alexis Steger, Housing and Community Development Director, spoke on behalf of the
owner. She said that she had missed a step in the demolition process and that she was
aware the building was historic as they required the previous owner to remove a front
porch which was not safe in 2021-2022. She stated that they had sent out an RFP to
renovate the property but did not receive a response. She said the RFP was updated to
include designated parking in a nearby lot and $20,000 in incentives. They then received
one RFP response which indicated that an additional $100,000 in incentives would be
necessary to rehab the structure. She said they looked for money in the current budget
but could not find adequate funds and that it would take more than a year to get the
funding included in a future budget. She said the cost was so high because of the
condition of the foundation and floor joists. She noted there was a sag of about 4” in the
floor. She stated the demo process started but upon being notified, demolition was halted
to go through the demolition of historic structures process.

Commissioner Monk expressed disappointment and noted that the City has acquired and
demolished three properties along Bluff Street. Ms. Steger stated that yes, it has been
unfortunate. She said the state of those structures was severe. She said this property
appeared to be salvageable initially, but upon inspection of the foundation and joists, it
became impractical. Commissioner Monk stated that the optics of the situation are not
great.

Commissioner Dement asked why the demo was started. Steger said she had treated it
as a standard demolition and moved straight to an RFP. She said the RFP process does



Minutes — Historic Preservation Commission
4-18-24 Page 7

not notify all staff until late into that process. Commissioner Dement asked for clarification
on why the interested party was not accepted. Steger noted that the City could not meet
the additional $100,000. Dement noted that the gap is a lot of money, but in the historic
preservation world, money can often be found. Dement stated that investors should have
been notified of the RFP and was confident that amount of money could be found. Steger
noted that the RFP was out for 8 months. Commissioner Esser asked if the RFPs are
posted publicly and Steger said yes and stated that they also sent the RFP to people or
companies that showed interest in rehabbing the property. Commissioner Esser asked
how that process could be more visible to the public.

Commissioner Doyle asked about the proposed number of units and if there is a list of
these types of properties in this situation. Steger said that the previous owner had
attempted three units, but the City had planned two. She said the City maintains a list of
Vacant and Abandoned buildings and noted that they have implemented an ordinance
change that would allow the City to issue higher fines or acquire properties sooner to help
these types of situations. Doyle noted that it is unfortunate to see rotten teeth along a
historic block and later noted that a standing structure would be preferential to
greenspace. Doyle asked what changes have taken place so that this situation is avoided
in the future. Steger said that Planning Services and Historic Preservation will be notified
immediately upon acquiring a property in the future.

Dement asked if there were future plans for the property. Ms. Steger said that there are
no plans currently stating that required setbacks are an issue for redevelopment. Staff
Member Schrobilgen clarified to the Commission that there is a process through the
Zoning Board of Adjustment to request exceptions for setbacks and other zoning
regulations. Ms. Steger concluded by saying that the property may be sold off to adjacent
property owners or to a developer.

DEMOLITION PERMIT: Motion by Pettitt, seconded by Gau, to approve the application
as submitted. Motion denied by the following vote: Aye — None; Nay — Dement, Doyle,
Esser, Gau, Monk, and Pettitt.

Motion by Monk, seconded by Gau, to approve the certificate of Economic Non-Viability
and therefore to allow the demolition of the structure by the following vote: Aye — Dement,
Doyle, Esser, Gau, Monk, and Pettitt; Nay — none.

ITEMS FROM PUBLIC: None.

ITEMS FROM COMMISSION:
Commissioner Monk reminded all commissioners that the Sustainable Dubuque
Conference was next month.

ITEMS FROM STAFF:
- Dubuque Brewing & Malting — Inspection and Construction Services Staff
Member Ben Pothoff updated the Commission on the status of the work being




Minutes — Historic Preservation Commission
4-18-24 Page 8

done at 3000 Jackson Street. He noted that demolition equipment is on site and
that everything south of the arch is planned to be demolished.

Commissioner Monk asked if there were any fines issued. Mr. Pothoff stated that
there were no fines issued. The property owner had until Monday to have
equipment on-site in preparation for the demolition and that upon inspection they
appeared to have met that requirement.

- 324 Lowell Street Garage — Inspection and Construction Services Staff Member
Ben Pothoff informed the commission of its upcoming demolition. The subject
garage was deemed a public safety hazard and a demolition order was issued by
the Building Official. He said the structure will be demolished next Friday. He
pointed to images and stated the inspector thought it looked even worse in person.

Commissioners noted the terrible condition of the garage, and that demolition is
appropriate but expressed regret that the garage was not better maintained.

- Ken Kringle Awards — Staff member Happ Olson reminded the commission of
the ceremony. Arrival time needs to be confirmed but commissioners should plan
on attending at 5:45 pm. All six commissioners noted they would like to attend, and
Happ Olson noted that they could each introduce and present an award to the
recipients.

- Eagle Point Park Historic Structure Report Update - Staff Member Happ Olson
discussed what the Historic Report entails, where they are at in the process and
some of the difficulties that have come up. She noted that the grantor was very
interested in Eagle Point Park and finding a way to help it begin.

ADJOURNMENT: Motion by Dement, seconded by Esser to adjourn the April 18, 2024
Commission meeting. Motion carried by the following vote: Aye — Dement, Doyle, Esser,
Gau, Monk, and Pettitt; Nay — none.

The meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Mx June 18, 2024

Chris Happ Olson, Assistant Planner Adopted




